8.

9.

MEETING AGENDA
SOUTH DAKOTA BOARD OF MASSAGE THERAPY

Wednesday, March 20 2024
8:00 am CDT
The meeting will be held via Microsoft Teams
Click here to join the meeting:

Join Teams ileeting
Or Call: 1-605-679-7263, ID 278 006 025#

If you would like to attend this meeting in person, the Board office is located at:
1601 N Harrison Ave Ste 6, Pierre, SD

. Call to Order

. Approval of Agenda

Open Forum
Approval of the Draft Minutes (February 21, 2024)
Executive Secretary Report, Updates, and Questions
- Financial Report for the Month Ending February 29, 2024
- Attendance at Federation of State Massage Therapy Boards (FSMTB)
Executive Directors Summit

Round-table Report of March 14, 2024 Meeting on Title IV Funding/Education Hours;
Regulating Schools; Instructor Licenses

Disciplinary Cases 2023-002 and 2023-003 Massage Therapy Board vs Hailing Zang
Consider Assessing Costs

Application Approval/Denial TEMP147 (Executive Session SDCL 1-25-2(3) and 1-27-1.5(5)

Application Approval/Denial T10867 (Executive Session SDCL 1-25-2(3) and 1-27-1.5(5)

10. Next Meeting — May 22, 2024 - Proposed Agenda ltems

11. Adjourn



SOUTH DAKOTA BOARD OF MASSAGE THERAPY MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, February 21, 2024
1601 N Harrison Ave Suite 6 Pierre SD
And Teams Meeting

1. Call to Order

President Fallon Helm called the meeting to order at 8:00 am CDT. Members of the public could
join the meeting via tele-conferencing or Teams Meeting.

President Fallon Helm read the roll and a quorum was established.

Members Present: Fallon Helm — via Teams Meeting
Kallyn Reinert — via Teams Meeting
Al Trace - via Teams Meeting

Members Absent: N/A

Others Present: Kate Boyd, Executive Secretary — via Teams Meeting
Steve Blair Staff Legal Counsel — via Teams Meeting
Tamara Lee, DOH Attorney — via Teams Meeting

Guests Present: Missy Regan, Christine Hoober-AMTA, Angela Gleason, Kara
Goodrich, Angela Taylor, Olawa Rae-Bruhjell, Bobbi Buchholz,
Kaylynn Overacker, Peggy Sproat, Ralph Wiedmann, Amber
Hamburger, Heather Herrick, Mike Oster, Randa Heller, Sharolyn
Sombke, Bridget Myers, Lorin Pankratz, All via Teams, and Bob
Mercer-KELO at 1601 N Harrison Ave Suite 6, Pierre, SD.

2. Approval of Agenda
A motion was made by Al Trace, seconded by Kallyn Reineert, to approve the agenda as
presented. MOTION PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea; Trace yea)

3. Open Forum

Olawa Rue-Bruhjell asked if a recording of the January 17, 2024 meeting is available. It was not
available at this time. She said that she will forward the recording she has so that it can be posted
on the Board of Massage Therapy website. Randa Heller stated that she is looking forward to
improved communication between the Board of Massage Therapy and the licensees.

4. Approval of January 17, 2024 Meeting Minutes
Al Trace made a motion, seconded by Kallyn Reinert, to approve the minutes of the January 17,
2024 meeting. MOTION PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea; Trace yea)

5. Executive Secretary Report and Updates

Financial Report for the month ending January 31, 2024 - Executive Secretary Kate Boyd
reported that the financial report for the month ending January 31, 2024, showed the available
budget for the remainer of FY 2024 of $24,526.34 and cash center balance of $47,374.68 (reserve
funds).



Board of Massage Therapy Minutes
February 21, 2024
Page 2

Title IV - Education Hours Required for Federal Financial Aid - Ms. Boyd reported that there
are new rules being proposed at the federal level reiating to qualification for 1V financial funding.
Some of the details are:

Title IV funding is available to students in an accredited school.

The current threshold for students to be eligible for funding under Title IV for clock hour education
is 600 hours.

South Dakota's legal mandate for massage therapy education is 500 hours.

The current Title IV rule allows a school to increase hours up to 1560% above the State mandate.
South Dakota schools can require 750 hours and their students are eligible to apply for financial
aid under Title 1V.

The proposed Title 1V rule would lower the 150% rule to 100%. The result, if the rules go into effect
July 1, 2024, is that no students in South Dakota would be eligible for Title 1V funding since South
Dakota only requires 500 hours of education.

Legislation would need to be introduced in the 2025 South Dakota legisiative session to increase
the required education hours so that students at accredited schools can seek Title [V funding. The
Board invited Christine Hoober, a representative of American Massage Therapy Association
(AMTA) to share whatever information she had on this subject. Ms. Hoober stated that the new
rules will likely go into effect. An effort is being made to delay the implementation of the rules to
allow states to raise their education hours, but it may be doubfful that the delay will oceur. It is also
unknown how this will affect students who enroll prior to July 1, 2024. She stated that the US
Department of Education believes that schools requiring more clock hours of education above what
a State licensing board requires may be a money grab on the parts of the schools.

President Fallon Helm stated that the next step for South Dakota will be to form a Roundtable that
will include one board member, representatives of the massage therapy schools, Executive
Secretary Kate Boyd. President Helm appointed herself as the Board representative to lead the
round table. It was noted that Board member Al Trace, while a school owner, would not be able to
participate in the roundtable because it would violate the State's open meeting laws if a majority of
the current board was present. A different representative from Black Hills Health & Education
Center will participate in the roundtable. Representatives from AMTA and ABMP (Associated
Bodywork & Massage Professionals) will also be invited to participate since their associations keep
abreast of federal legislation and have lobbyists in DC.

President Helm suggested three possible dates for the roundtable and requested that Executive
Secretary Kate Boyd, contact the stakeholders to determine the best date to hold the roundtable
meeting. A report of the roundtable meeting will be given at the March 20, 2024 board meeting.

Business Licenses/Permits
Executive Secretary Boyd mentioned business licenses or permits. She said that if the Board
would ever iike to consider this, it will be placed on the agenda for further discussion.

How Do Schools Get Approved in South Dakota



Board of Massage Therapy Minutes
February 21, 2024
Page 3

Ms Boyd stated that she has received inquiries regarding the steps necessary for a massage
school to become approved by the Massage Therapy Board in South Dakota. She said she did not
have a definitive answer and the subject of approval of schools is not clearly defined in law or rule.
It was agreed that the Board would like to discuss this at a future meeting.

Should the Board Be Regulating Schools
The subject of regulating schools is related to the process of seeking State approval of a school
and will be discussed in conjunction with approval of a school at future meetings.

6. Payment for Student Massage Services

The subject of payment for student massage services was the resuit of inquiries from massage
therapy schools. Atrtorney Steve Blair provided some preliminary information on this subject, and,
it was once again agreed that this will be part of the discussion about massage schools as noted in
the Executive Secretary report.

The Board asked that the subject of massage therapy schools be placed on the agenda beginning
with the March 20, 2024 meeting, to include: (a) process for a school to become approved as a
massage therapy school in South Dakota: (b) shouid the Board be regulating schools: and, (c)
payment for student massage therapist services.

7. Disciplinary Cases 2023-002 and 2023-003 Massage Therapy Board vs HaiLing Zhang
President Helm turned the meeting over to Steve Blair, General Counsel to the Board, for the
discussion and action concerning disciplinary cases 2023-002 and 2023-003 — In re Massage
Therapy License of HaiLing Zhang. Deputy Attorney General Blair noted that a formal hearing was
held on November 15, 2023. A verbatim court reporter transcript was made available to the Board
members and included in the public meeting packet, together with the Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law submitted by both attorney Robert Christenson, representing Ms. Zhang, and
Special Assistant Attorney General Tamara Lee, appearing as prosecuting counsel for the Board.
It was noted that Ms. Lee had also submitted objections to Mr. Christenson's Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law.

Mr. Blair asked that the record state the following: (1) all current Board members were present,
including President Fallon Helm, Vice President Kallyn Reinert and Secretary-Treasurer Al Trace;
(2) former Board member Lorin Pankratz, who had been the investigator on this case was present:
(3) neither Attorney Christenson representing Ms. Zhang nor Hailing Zhang were present.

Mr. Blair advised the Board that all options concerning discipline of Ms. Zhang were available to
the Board, including revocation or suspension of Ms. Zhang's massage therapy license. The
Board was also advised that it may impose its costs of the proceedings upon Ms. Zhange, not to
include attorney fees. Mr. Blair further advised the Board that Executive Session was available for
the purposes of seeking legal counsel on the options available to the Board, but that deliberation of
the matter should otherwise occur in general session.

Mr. Blair thereafter gave a detailed verbal report of the proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions
of Law presented to the Board.

Kallyn Reinert made a motion, seconded by Al Trace, to adopt the Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law presented by Mr. Blair for cases 2023-002 and 2023-003 — [n re Massage
Therapy License of Hailing Zhang, and to revoke Zhang's massage therapy license for one year.



Board of Massage Therapy Minutes
February 21, 2024
Page 4

The Board will consider the financial costs to be imposed upon Ms. Zhang at its March 20, 2024
Board meeting. MOTION PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea; Trace yea)

The Final Order of the Board, including its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law are attached to
these meeting minutes.

8. Approval/Denial of Application T10854
and

9. Approval/Denial lication T10867

At 10:32 am, Kallyn Reinert made a motion, seconded by Al Trace, to go into Executive Session to
discuss agenda item 8. License T10854 and agenda item 9. License T10867 pursuant to SDCL 1-
25-2(3) and 1-27-1.5(5). MIOTION PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea; Trace yea)
The Board exited Executive Session at 10:49 am and made the following motions.

Kallyn Reinert made a motion, seconded by Al Trace, to approve the application of T10854.
MOTION PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea; Trace yea)

Kallyn Reinert made a motion, seconded by Al Trace to defer action on Application T10867 and to
request further information. MOTION PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea; Trace yea)

11. Adjourn

Kallyn Reinert made a motion, seconded by Al Trace to adjourn. MOTION PASSED. Roll Call Vote
(Helm yea; Reinert yea; Trace yea)

The meeting was adjourned at 10:57 am.

Respectfully submitted,

Executive Secretary Kate Boyd and Secretary Al Trace



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

BOARD OF MASSAGE THERAPY

IN THE MATTER OF ) No. 2023-002 & No. 2023-003
DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS OF: )

HAILING ZHANG ) FINAL ORDER

(Lic. no. MT 11622) )

The above captioned matter came before the Board of Massage Therapy on
Wednesday, February 21, 2024. Hailing Zhang did not appear personally or
through counsel. Board staff was present and represented by Special Assistant
Attorney General Tamara Lee.

Previously, this matter was heard by the Board as a contested case hearing
held on November 15, 2023. Board member Fallon Helm (via Zoom), Kallyn
Reinert, and Al Trace were present for the contested hearing. Board member Lorin
Pankratz was recused from participating in the matter due to his involvement as
the investigator for this matter. Board Staff was represented by prosecuting
counsel, Special Assistant Attorney General Tamara Lee. Ms. Zhang was
personally present for the contested hearing and represented by counsel, Robext
Christenson. General Counsel to the Board, Assistant Attorney General Steven R.
Blair, was appointed as Hearing Chair for the proceedings. A copy of the transcript
of this hearing has been prepared and is included in the administrative record of
this matter.

Subsequent to the contested hearing, the parties submitted proposed
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law. Ms. Lee, as prosecuting counsel, also
submitted objections to the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law submitted by
Ms. Zhang.

The Board being otherwise fully informed of the facts and issues pertinent to
this matter, and based upon the testimony, evidence, and arguments presented,

makes and enters the following:



FINDINGS OF FACT

. Hailing Zhang operated a massage therapy business named Go Spa located
at the Empire Mall in Sioux Falls, South Dakota.

. A complaint was filed with the Board on August 3, 2022, against Hongjie Yu
by Brooke Sieff. Ms. Sieff alleged that she had been sexually assaulted by
Hongjie Yu during a massage therapy session held at Go Spa on May 20,
2022,

. Upon investigation of the Complaint, the Board’s Executive Secretary
determined that Hongjie Yu was not a licensed massage therapist in South
Dakota, and therefore the Board did not have jurisdiction over him.

. According to SDCL § 36-35-183, for purposes of massage therapy licensure in
South Dakota:

Any of the following acts constitute unprofessional conduct:

1. Conviction of or a plea of guilty to any felony, any crime involving or

relating to the practice of massage, or any crime involving dishonesty

or moral turpitude;

Providing the board false or misleading information on any application

for a license or renewal of a license; :

Willful misconduet or negligence in the practice of massage;

Exceeding the scope of practice of massage as defined in § 36-35-1;

Engaging in any lewd or immoral conduct;

Making fraudulent charges for services:

Engaging in conduct which endangers the health or welfare of clients

or other persons;

Failure to comply with any provision of this chapter; or

9. Engaging in any act that aids, abets, facilitates, or promotes a
violation of this chapter.

Asgkm B

ol

. Pursuant to SDCL § 86-35-10 “Any person who engages in the practice of
massage or holds himself or herself out to the public as engaged in the
practice of massage without a license issued pursuant to this chapter, or
owns, operates or manages a business which knowingly employs or contracts
with any unlicensed person to offer or provide massage therapy, is guilty of a
Class 1 misdemeanor. The board may bring a civil action to enjoin any
violation of this chapter.”

. On August 12, 2022, the Executive Secretary for the Board filed a complaint
against Hailing Zhang for allowing an unlicensed individual, Hongjie Hu, to
perform massage therapy services in Ms. Zhang’s place of business, Go Spa.



7. A copy of the Complaint was sent to Ms. Zhang on August 12, 2022, along
with a letter requesting a written response within twenty days.

8. On August 29, 2022, the Board received a letter from counsel for Ms. Zhang,
Robert Christenson. The letter was submitted on Ms. Zhang’s behalf.

9. Mz, Christenson’s letter admitted that Ms. Zhang had been working with
Hongjie Yu, and that Mr. Yu was not licensed as a massage therapist in
South Dakota. The letter stated that Mr. Christenson advised Ms. Zhang
that she could not allow Mr. Yu to work in her business because he was not
licensed in South Dakota. The letter indicated that Ms. Zhang agreed that
Mr. Yu would no longer work with Ms. Zhang until he was properly licensed
in South Dakota.

10.Board member Lorin Pankratz was appointed to be the investigator in this
maftter.

11.Hailing Zhang is of Chinese descent and speaks Mandarin Chinese as her
native language.

12.0n October 12, 2022, Mr. Pankratz met with Ms. Zhang and her attorney,
Mz, Christenson, at Mr. Christenson’s law office. An interpreter was also
present for this meeting.

13.Subsequent to this meeting, on October 183, 2022, Mr. Pankratz filed a report
with the Executive Secretary.

14.Mr. Pankratz’s report indicates that Ms. Zhang admitted that Mr. Yu had
been providing massage services at her place of business for several years.
Ms. Zhang also admitted that she knew Myr. Yu was not licensed, but should
have been licensed before being allowed to provide massage services. Mr.
Pankratz stated that Ms. Zhang knew she had made a mistake, and advised
that Mr. Yu had not been allowed back to her business since the complaint
had been filed.

15.Due to the admission of wrongdoing, Mr. Pankratz intended to recommend
that the Board issue Ms. Zhang a formal letter of reprimand and do spot
checks to ensure future compliance.

16.0n approximately November 10, 2022, M. Pankratz received information
from Ms. Sieff that Hongjie Yu was still performing massage therapy services
at Go Spa. Ms. Sieff provided Mr. Pankratz a video of Mr. Yu performing



massage therapy at Go Spa. The video was not introduced as evidence as
part of the contested case hearing before the Board.

17.0n December 20, 2022, Special Assistant Attorney General Court Roper, sent
notice to Ms. Zhang that her license was being summarily suspended. The
notice also indicated that a formal hearing would be held in this matter on
March 22, 2023.

18.0n March 18, 2028, the Board’s Executive Secretary sent an email to counsel
for Ms. Zhang indicating the March 22 hearing was being postponed due to
the unavailability of prosecuting legal counsel.

19.0n May 8, 2023, a formal Complaint (mo. 2023-002) and Notice of Formal
Hearing were sent to Ms. Zhang and her attorney. The notice indicated the
formal contested hearing to be held in this matter was scheduled for July 286,
2023.

20.Due to an interpreter not being available, the July 26, 2023, contested
hearing was rescheduled to November 15, 2023. An Amended Notice of
Formal Hearing was sent to Ms. Zhang and her attorney.

21.0n August 23, 2028, Ms. Sieff again observed Mr. Yu providing massage
therapy services at Go Spa. Ms. Sieff video recorded Mr. Yu massaging an
individual. This video was not introduced as evidence at the contested
hearing in this matter. Ms. Zhang was present at Go Spa at this time.

22.Subsequent to setting the November 15 hearing date, information was
received by the Executive Secretary regarding Ms. Sieff's observation that
Mr. Yu was still performing massage therapy services at Go Spa.

23.Yang Yu submitted an affidavit, dated September 5, 2023, admitted that he
received massages from Hongjie Yu at Go Spa in the summer of 2028,

24.Hongjie Yu submitted an affidavit, dated September 5, 2023, admitted that
he had provided massages during the summer of 2023 at Go Spa.

25.The Board entered its formal Order of Summary Suspension of Ms. Zhang’s
massage therapy license on September 19, 20283.

26.0n September 21, 2023, the Order of Summary Suspension, a second Formal
Complaint (no. 2023-008), and Notice of Formal Hearing were issued to Ms.
Zhang and her counsel.



27.The Order for Summary Suspension required Ms. Zhang to submit her
massage therapy license to the Board within ten days from the date of the
Order. Mr. Christenson sent Ms. Zhang’s massage therapy license to
prosecuting counsel Ms. Lee. The licensed was received on November 6,
2023.

28.A contested case hearing was held regarding Complaints nos. 2023-002 and
2023-003 on November 15, 2023.

29.Any Finding of Fact improperly designated as a Conclusion of Law is hereby
re-designated as an additional Finding of Fact.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. The Board has jurisdiction over this matter, and the parties thereto,
pursuant to the applicable provisions of SDCL ch. 36-35 and ARSD ch.
20:76:04.

2. Both Complaints, all notices of hearings, and all other notices required by
law were timely and properly given.

3. Hailing Zhang is licensed to practice as & massage therapist in South Dakota,
license no. MT 11622, which license is currently suspended.

4. Ms. Zhang was aware that Mr. Yu was not licensed to practice massage
therapy in South Dakota, and knowingly allowed him to provide massage
therapy services as Go Spa, her place of business.

5. Ms. Zhang had knowledge, as of August 29, 2022, as indicated by the letter
submitted by her attorney, that Mr. Yu was not allowed to provide massage
therapy services without a license.

6. Ms. Zhang indicated in her October 12, 2022, meeting with Mr. Pankratz that
she knew and understood that Mr. Yu was not allowed to provide massage
therapy services without a license.

7. Subsequent to August 29, 2022, and October 18, 2022, Ms. Zhang allowed M.
Yu, on at least two occasions, to provide massage therapy services at Go Spa
without a license.

8. SDCL § 36-35-10 prohibits a person who owns a massage therapy business
from knowingly employing an unlicensed person to offer or perform massage
therapy. Ms. Zhang violated this provision when she allowed Mr. Yu to
perform massage therapy without a license at Go Spa.



9. It is unprofessional conduct, pursuant to SDCL § 36-85-13(7) to “[engage] in
conduct which endangers the health or welfare of clients or other persons[.]”
To protect the health and welfare of clients, anyone who provides massage
therapy in South Dakota (with limited exceptions) must be licensed by the
Board. Mr. Yu is not licensed to practice massage therapy in South Dakota.
By allowing Mx. Yu to practice massage therapy without a license, Ms. Zhang
has engaged in conduct endangering the health and welfare of clients in
violation of SDCL § 36-35-13(7).

10.It is also unprofessional conduct, pursuant to SDCL § 36-35-13(8) to fail to
“comply with any provision of [SDCL ch. 86-85.]" Ms. Zhang has failed to
comply with the requirements of SDCL § 36-35-10 as discussed above.

11.Further, it is unprofessional conduct, pursuant to SDCL § 36-35-13(9) to
“lengage] in any act that aids, abets, facilitates, or promotes a violation of
this chapter.” By allowing Mr. Yu to practice massage therapy in her place of
business without a license, Ms. Zhang has aided, abetted, facilitated, or
promoted a violation of SDCL ch. 86-35.

12. Any Conclusion of Law improperly designated as a Finding of Fact is hereby
re-designated as an additional Conclusion of Law.

ORDER
Based upon the foregoing it is hereby:

ORDERED that Hailing Zhang’s license to practice Massage Therapy in
South Dakota is hereby REVOKED. It is furthesr

ORDERED that Hailing Zhang may not reapply for licensure to practice
massage therapy in South Dakota for period of one year from the date of entry of
this order. It is further

ORDERED that any renewal application submitted by Hailing Zhang while
contested case proceedings were pending is hereby DENIED. Is it further

ORDERED that Hailing Zhang is divected to reimburse the Board for its
actual expenses associated with these contested case proceedings as allowed
pursuant to SDCL 1-26-29.1. Tt is further

ORDERED that these documents are public records of the Board and the
State of South Dakota and may be published on the Board’s website and reported as

6



necessary to any national data bank or other entity deemed appropriate by the

Board in compliance with State and Federal law.

Dated this 2/22/2024 day of February, 2024

BOARD OF MASSAGE THERAPY




STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

BOARD OF MASSAGE THERAPY

IN THE MATTER OF
DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS OF-
HAILING ZHANG

(Lic. no. MT 11622)

No. 2023-002 & No. 2023-003

NOTICE OF ENTRY
OF ORDER

T N e

TO: HATLING ZHANG, through her attorney of record, ROBERT CHRISTENSON :
and TAMARA LEE, Special Assistant Attorney General and prosecuting counse] for
the Board.

Please take notice that on February 21, 2024, the South Dakota Board of
Massage Therapy made and entered its Final Order in the above captioned matter.
The Order was signed on February 22, 2024. A true and correct copy of the Final
Order is attached and hereby served upon you.

The parties are hereby advised of their right, pursuant to SDCL ch. 1-26, to
appeal the Board’s Final Order to the circuit court within thirty (30} days of service
of this Notice of Entry.

Dated this 23+ day of February, 2024

Tl =

Steven R. Blair

Deputy Attorney General
P.O. Box 70

Rapid City, SD 57702
{605) 394-6038
steven.blair@state.sd.us

General Counsel — Board of Massage Therapy




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that true and correct copies of the Board’s
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER, and FINAL ORDER, entered in the above
captioned matter were served via United States Mail, First Class, Postage Prepaid

upon the following:

Robert A. Christenson Tamara D. Lee

Christenson Law Office Special Asst. Atty. General

400 N. Main Ave., Suite 206 S.D. Dept. of Health

Sioux Falls, SD 57104 600 E. Capitol Ave.

rac.clolaw@midconetwork.com Pierre, SD 57501

Counsel — Ms. Hailing Zhang Tamara.Lee@state.sd.us
Prosecuting Counsel — Brd. of
Massage Therapy

On this 23 day of February, 2024.

Steven R. Blair
Deputy Attorney General



6°12 99°PLG‘EE ¥8 .88 9y 89 "TS6
81T PL GEE'L SL'9TS LT S8 FSL
9°gg Z6'¥ez’9tT BO'TILE 62 EB 96T
0°0 -Z28°gy 28 2% 000
0" 0 -00°6L0"E 00°6L0°‘2 po-o
9°9T 86" L6E 20°200'z G9°Z0%
1°ST ST°908‘8 SEToo0v‘eT 00° 00T
9-02 £F°LSE L5" 266 02 25T
0°0 -0T 6LL'F 071°986°F EB'9T
£ 9y g0 FI0’ 12 BG"FBEpZ 00- 08T
612 89°FLG5 sz 78° L8R 9F 89 " 1g6
0°0 ~Z8"gp 282w 00°0
0'0 ~-00°6L0'Z 00°6L0°Z 00°0
9°9T 86°'L6E 20°200‘g §9°205
1°S8T ST'908‘8 SE'00F‘2T 00" 00T
9°02 €% LGE LG" 266 02°2ST
0°¢ ~0T 6LLF 0T"986'% €8°9T
£°9¥% S0°FI0‘TZ 86 "F8E’'¥wE 00°08T
TAY TITEVITVAY HIVO-OL-9¥Ex XTHINOR
IDd Laoang SENLIANTIRE
98°pLS‘E P8 L8B 9
99°FLG'EE ¥B LBR 9y
PZ LEY '6F 99 pLs'cE v8'L88‘9y
HONVTYS SNOIINI¥IOHIaY SHYNLTAONEIRE
HSYD HIEVITYAY HIVA-OL~¥vax
v20e/80/€0 mIva
659°T Hovwg XTHINOR

LEQE 934

05°9L2°LE
05°9Lg  LE
00°0

00°0
0070
00°0
05°9LZ LE
0o"0
00°0
0070

08°9L2°LE

000
0070
Q00
05°9Lg'LE
000
00" ¢
00°0

HEYQ-OL-UYRE
SHONVHSRNONT

0S°'9LE LE
05°9L2'LE

0s'9Lg’LE

SHONVISHODNT
SLYA-OL~U¢AX

00°0 00°'6EL’LOT $O0L  I-£059 ANYEROD
0o 00°ELTI‘29 STYIoIgns mo
00°'0 00°909'GSF STVILOLENS sS4
00°0 000 HIHLO 0008025
00°D 0070 AYIIN0 TYIIAYD 000L0Zg
00°0 007 00%"2 STHLVA ¥ SHITAANS 0005025
0070 00°€8% ' rg SOAS TYALOWEINOD 00070ZS
000 00°052°T TEAVEL  000E£0ZS
00°0 00°L0zZ SITIANIS AIXOTANZ 000Z0TC
000 00'66E'SPH SHTUVIYS HEAOTANE  000TOTS
SMIYOT HNISNIDTT » TUNOISSHACHNE  I-£0S9 ANWAWOD
IANVEHOD A9 INOMUMME
000 00°6EL’LOT STYIOL
00°0 0070 WAHLO B0ZS
000 000 AVILOO TYIIavD Lozs
400 00 00%°‘2 STYLVH ? SETT44NS g0gs
00°0 00" £8% ‘85 SDAS 'TYAIDWHINOD i diTA]
000 00°0S2°'T THAYST, £0es
00°0 00" LOZ SLIIUNEE HEAXOTINGT 2015
0070 00°66E‘SH SEIYVIVS A9X0TanE I0TS
ALYA-OL-9Wax QITIDANS RINLIANEIRT
SLNIHITHROD LNOORY J0 LOALHO
‘OELEDU0S TELOL
00°0 00°0 00" 6EL‘LOT LOL aW0D 'TIV
00" 0 00°0 00" 6EL'LOT LOL OILESIOT
00°0 00°0 00 6EL/LOT I~£059
SLNAWILIHNOD SUHASNWYT NOITYTYaO9day
AIVNA-OL~ =X NOIIVI¥aouaay TYNIOTHO dwoD

QINI - ZAVYUIHT, TOYSSYR J0 IY0E SHWN IINN EEDANG

‘ONINIVHEY SAvVd xvd

TONINIVIHEY ¥YER XJ

TTe60 LIND T3Foung

vg0z/62/20 30 sy
SaNN TTIVITVAY

09drogvs



SPT

Vg

AdVEARL FIVSSYR JO quvod
HOTIAT¥OSHA HAINED

*¥x U0 TEZ°LZF'6T TIZ260 TYLOL EINN IEoang

*x 40 FE LTV 6V TIZ60 £059 TWLOL LINAQ 2ang/anoo
* 40 FeC LZP 6D BT9 €059 TULOX d0¥N0s /ANYIROD
O ¥¢°LZF’6F 0000FTT OFRT9000IZ60 E059
¥o/aq HONVTVY INOODDW AHLNED ANYIHOD
O3NI - AJVNIHI TOUSSYH J0 GIVOH TIZ60 :IIND LEDINH
HLTYHH 60 SAONEDY

¥20T/62/20 :40 sw
SEHORVIVE HEINTD HSYD
VILOMVYG HINOS 40 HIVLS 9607 TYE



FHEERRE ¥Z"50E’69 vZ'voo‘e TTZ60 :‘LINN &
FEEERN ¥2°'50g ‘69 Pe° vo0’e €059 tdHOD
FREXY v S0€£°69 72 r00’s 00TTZ60  :wiND
rEry PZ°S0E’59 ve vo0‘g T900TTZ60  uaND
fx¥ ¥Z°50£’69 PE Y00°‘E 0FP8T900TTZ60 IMEIND
¥ ¥Z 018’2 Pz res’T ENNFATI ¥IHTO 67  :IDoW

¥ 00976 00" JONFATH DNTLVSEA0NON 0Z6%  :IDov

~ D0"9T6 00° SEONIASY ONIIVSTIONON §P00267 E£0S9 0¥8T900TIZ60

¥ Fe veg’T P v68'T NI SYHISNVEI ONILvNTao 0167 :noow

e res’T Fe v68°T NT SUEISNWAL 9NTIVITEo 0000167 €059 0¥8To00TTZEQ

wx 00° 006 007009 SHOIAMAS ¥ SETYS €OX STOUWHD S%  :1zoow

* 00° 006 00°003 S65F  :Ioow

00° 006 00°009 SESTT-SETIOD EWODNE DSTH T00S6SF €059 0¥8TI00TIZED

¥ 00°565°G9 00° 015 SHIA ? SIOWNEI ‘ SESNEITT 2y  ioDw

# 00° 565759 00'0TS { TU AN TAOD-NON) INISNEDIT dNOJ0 ¥ SSEANTSOH E6ZF L Io0w
00°Sgs’'z 00°S56T SHET ONISNEOIT 066£62% €059 0FBT900TTZE0

00°S5.8'E 00 00€g SEHE NOILVIITIayY J0TE6ZF £059 OFBTY00TTZ60

00" 53 00" HEd NOTLVAILOYTY POTE6GZY €059 0OF8I800TTZ60

00°522 00" SHIX XMVE0aNET, EOTEGZF €059 0F8T900TTZE0

00° 089 0p° SELI HATLOYNI C0TE6EY E0S9 OVBIL00TIZG0
00°spe’gg 00°'ST STAI TEMANTI TOIE6ZY €059 0F8TINOTTZE0

SHY0E ONISNMOTT = TUNOISSEIONd EHWN ANVIROD
€059 ON AN¥IWOD

HINQ-OL-9VaAX HELNOW INERDIND NOILgY¥osHa LNOODOW dHOD YIINED
OINT - ZAVHAHT AOWSSYW 40 a9¥0d  1T260 IINQ LEDaNgE
HLIVAR 60 ADNEDY

¥202/62/20 :mNIaNT qorusg Hoa
4INQ IH900E X8 XEVWHAS FONTAMT
g0V VIONYQ HINOS J0 WIWIS ¥202/20/50 cuszzoug



x*x 8D

¥D
Ha
- (e
qa
Ha

- te)

-t

°o
¥a

aa
"0
qa

qa

g0
ya
oo

4aa
o
-t
4a

o
L= (e

0Sé HOVg

6S°I0F‘Z
S9°209

S¢ g
Sg°8
S¢ 8
SL 16
S9°20¢g

ve v68’T
vz pe8‘T
00" 009
007009
00015

0D°S6T
00" 00g
007960°T
00°597T
00°59T
00° <91
00794
00°SZ
00" 5L
00°0cgZ
00°0geg
00°0te
00°5ze
00-s2¢g
00" Sgg
00°991
00°'S9t
00° 99T
00°0ST
00°05T
00°0stT

ENOOWR

HONVHD LEN--ZINVAROD THIOL
FINVHD IEN 400N ELNACDOY TWYOL

6L50760Q 00000000000096702g OF8T200TTZ60
6L50F60Q 00000000000096%025 0F¥BTI900TTIZ60
6LS0V60Q 00000000000096F025 O0VBIS00TTCE0
S80TOVEqQ 0000000000008TF02S 0V8T900TTIZ60
TeoTOVaD 000000000000TESOZS 0F8TS00TTE60

8320F760L

SLES0V60"

SLS0F60Y
SLS0F60Y
SL507609
TOLTIF60D
TOLTF60D
TOLI?60D
LLITFE0D
LLOTPE0D
LLITFG0D
9S9TF60D
98921%600
959TF60D
LESTFE0D
LEOTPGOD
LESTFE0D
8081P60D
909T¥60D
209T%600
YOSTEEOD
F9STR600D
¥95TrE0D

HONVHD IIN JnowD LNQODOY TvroL
0000T6% 0P8TI900TTZG0
HONWHD IEN 4nNows INOOJDY TEEOL
TO0S6SY OP8IS00TIZ60
HONVYHD IAN dnows SNOODDY THIOL

06G6E6ZF 0PBT900TIZG0
90TE6ZY OPBII00TTZ60
TOTE62F OFRT900ITZ60
I0IEGZY 0VST900TIZG0
IL0TEGZY OVBTO00TIZE0
LOTEESr 0FBTS00TIZED
I0TEGEZY OV8T900TTZ60
I0TIE6EF 0V8BTS00TTZE0
TLOTEGZF OFBTSO0TIZG0
I0TE6SF 0VBT900TTZ60
TO0TE6ZY OF8T200TTZ60
T0IE6EF OFBTI00TIZGO
I0TE6EY OF8TI00TTZE0
T0IE6EF 0FST900TTIZG0
I0TEGEY 0FBIS00TTZE0
TOTIE6ZY 07BTI00TTZE0
TOTEGEF O0YBII00TIZH0
TOTEGEZY O0¥8T900TTIZ60
TOTE6ZF 0P8T900TTZE0
IOTEGTY OVBTO00TTZE0
TOTEEEY OFPSTO00TTZE0

€089
£059
£059
£059
€059

£059

€059

£059
£059
€059
£0g9
EQSS
€089
€059
£059
£059
£059
£059
£059
€059
£059
£059
€059
£0g9
£059
€059
EQg9
€059

SMUYOH DNISNEDIT 3 TENOISSHACHd MWuN ANVIHOD
£0S9 ON ZANVIHOD

dr INIHaD0aq

INOODDT dEINTD

JHOD

OANT - ZAYMHHI SEOUSSWH J0 MM¥OH TTIZ60 IIND ang

ONY HONFATY ATHINOR

ve0e/z0/e0 YOESZA H202/L0/20
veoe/z0/z0 FOESES v202/L0/20
¥eoe/20/20 FOESZA v202/L0/20
¥20e/12/20 rZoe/ee/zo0
¥eoz/s0/z0 F20Z/vT/20
¥eoc/eg/e0 FEFOFEALC FZ0E/T0/E0
¥202/T0/20 ¥eog/20/z0
reoz/To/z0 vC0E8/20/20
¥C0Z/T0/20 F202/20/20
v20e/T0/20 ¥e08/20/20
Feoz/zz/z0 098T9E ¥20z/£2/20
¥eue/zz/20 09BT9E $202/E2/20
¥E0e/22/20 098T9E vz0e/cg/zZ0
¥eoz/oe/z0 T69T9E ¥20e/Te/Z0
¥eoe/0e/20 I69T9E P202/T2/Z0
vEoe/oz/20 T69T9E ¥Z02/Te/20
¥20e/%1/20 852T9E ¥E0Z/9T/20
¥202/%1/20 BSET9E ¥202/91/20
ve0e/v1/20 BSET9E P20OZ/9T/Z0
vz0e/zt/20 YY0T9E ¥Z02/¥1/20
¥202/21/20 FFOT9E P20Z/%T/20
beoz/2t/z0 YPOISE H202/%T/20
¥e02/L0/20 6¥909¢€ ¥Z0Z/60/20
FE0E/L0/20 67909E ¥Z202/60/20
¥202/L0/20 6F909€ $Z02/60/20
Feo0Z/T0/20 89T09E FZ02/20/20
¥Z0e2/10/20 B9TO0SE ¥2Z02/Z0/Z0
r20z/10/20 B2TO02€E ¥20EZ/20/20
arva # 0d ¥O ‘¥ouNmA mxwq
hAelc R ics ‘TEAOYIaY xsod
b202/62/20 :ONIGNT aorwma Jox
G043 WHEHONOA TUNMAOD
WLONMY(A HINOS J0 EIVIS

HITVAH 60

v2oe/zo/c0

ADNEDY

fAZ0EIVS



FREXRAXR
L PR
FEEERK
FERER

'

FRXE
rax

xx

rry
g

Xy
X3

XY
FRX¥

rry
¥

rxy
rx

ga
aa
aaq
aa
p-(u)
aa
¥a
p-ef
da
¥a
qaa

qa
aa
aa
qa
ua
¥a
aa
¥a
qaa
uq
aa
¥a
- (s)
qa
qa
¥a
ugq

qao

f4a

99

TTZ60 :IInn 'g

€059

E059
€059
€059

€059
£059

€059

£059
€052

£059

dHOD

89 156
89156 00TTZ60 IEND
B9 156 TO00TIZ60 TUIND
89156 0F8TY900TTZ60 THEIND
89156 £059 {dHOD
G58°'¥GL SHSNAIXT ONIIVNZIO z5 1dNoEs
S9°zog STYINELYA ¥ SEITJ40S  S0zg {ILDENE0
59°20% O0TES0ES :gnspEp
§9°z0g Feoz/v1/20 T€0TOrad 000000000000TESOZS 0¥8T900TIZ60
00°00T SEOTAMES TYAXOVHINGD  1ozg ¥ o (= (o)
sZ°8 096702¢ :gnsrao
S g VOESZI  PE0Z/L0/20 8L50760d 000000000000965625 0F8T900TTZ60
SZ°8 VY0ESZ3  ¥20Z/L0/20 64507600 0000000000009670z5 0¥8T900TTZ60
gz g YOESZA FEZ0Z/L0/Z0 6L507600 00000000000096F0zS 0F8To00TTZ60
SL I6 08TF02S ‘gEnspao
5L°T6 Fe0g/ce/20 §80T072A 0000000000008TH0ZG O¥8TI900TTZ60
0¢ 25T TIAIL  E08S :zDArCgo
00" 0% O0FPTEO0ES :gnspEO
00" 0¥ 00EZ9% F20Z/TT/20 1220vzxasn 0000000000005 TE0ZG 0FBT900TTZ60
02 21T 0E0E0ES :dEnspmo
02 21T 00eZor tv202/Tz/Z0 Le20v2XE3D 000000000000£0£025 0FBT900TTZ60
EB 96T SHOTAMES 'TYNOSHTS 18 1 EN0ES
£8°91 SITAANAE FEAQTAWH gQTg 1LOFrA0
£8°'9T 0T020TS :HaSrEo
90 00EE8Y wZ0Z/TE/Z0 TZC0PZXTO0 0000000000001020TS 0F8T200TTIZ60
LL ET ¥e0e/20/20 9ZT0FEXIADD 000000000000T0Z0TS 0¥8I900TTZ50
00°08T SHINVIYS EAX0TIWT TQES P LOECE0
00" 08T 0E0TOTS :dnsrHO
00" 0BT pE02/20/20 SZTOVZXEDD 000000000000£0TOTS 0FBIS00TTE6D
SQUVOH ONISNEDIT ® TUNOISSEAONA HEWYN ANVANOD
£059 ON ANVAWOD
INRORY dNo¥D WEERAN YN # INGWAvVE ¥Oo oA (4] WEEHAN ENNODDY WILNED
YOoaNza Joanma LEOHS “# TAdaY AD OINTIS04 ENTHOD0G
OiNI - ZAVMEHE ASYSSYH 40 NY0H  TIZ60 LINN sasang
HITYAH 60 ADNTOW
¥202/62/20 :ONIANT aoryss Hod
THOd HN¥OLTONIAXT XTHINOCH
Aovg VILONYA HINOS 0 HIWIS ¥202/20/50 T13S0ZOwE



* g8 2y

cB ¥
* 00°6L0‘E

00°6L0°'2
* 20°200°'z

geozy
65°99¢
8T°602

» SE'00% ‘2T

Lv°LOT’2
06
S0°8LT
TE erL
69°T0T
S9°0¢g
F1°806
9%7°'96¢
TL'60S'T
LO ST9
00°L5F ‘g
00°05%

¥ LS 266

00° g8
00 0%
67719
0g 21T
b¥-C2T
FF 8T

*x 80°TLE 62
* 01°986'F

50°9

BT g%

80 FEC’Z

Bg-pLS

6 BE8’T
% B6 ¥BE ‘vz

00° 096

00" FrR‘g

BG6°0BS'pT

HING-OL-9gvax

FEZ HOUg

HINOW INZIMND

veoe/ez/z0
EINO ITEDANT X9 L90d

4% 40 dI99 ® axm HLO

SININAYE LSMYAINT SERIO

AIYMMIVH HELOdH0D

000000000000628025
AVIIN0O 'THLYAYD

00000000000T06£0ZS

STYTHEIVH ® SHITdans

HITLS0g
HIVLS -ONIINTYS
SHI'TGENS FDITII0

000000000000SESOES
000000000000 TES0ZS
000000000000205025

SEOTANAS TYNTOVIINGD

FDIANAS TYNEOVEINGD YEHLO
HIMAS ¥ Hovauvs

S0AuS SNOILTUDINNWHODETIT
SIWAd ASVAT aMog INNTAMY
ANIS INIVI 8 TYIYOIINwD
INIVH 3 ANAS INTRITOST
SEOIANES SEOENOSEY NYROH
SEOTANAS IWNOW STUODES
SHOTAMEAS THMINED
HIVLS~SHEDIANTS HILOTWOD
ENVETOSNOD TyHaET
INULIOSNOD WALOANOD

IS-NT/STUEN FTEYXEL-NON
ALVLS-NI/STYEN STaWXys
“IS NI-THAVEI " XOTIHE-NON
/B (" IS-NT) ATIE-0IOY
FN/T ("&LS-NI) ATHE onaw
HIVLS NI-QENMO HEYIS-OInw

NOTLVSNEIHOD ENIRACTIRIND
NOILUSNIIWOD S EOM
ZYYHS ¥H-"SNT 23I'T/HI Tvan
TIVHS HH- LN T LAY

DIVHS S, YTZOTANI-TSYO

SHIS SYHH WHOD ¥ auvog
SHEOYM 3 VS dNH dWEL/I-g
SHOYM ¥ TYS aWX I-a

00000000000096% 025
000000000000557025
000000000000E5k025
000000000005257025
000000000000ECH0ZS
0000000000002250ZS
00000000000£L02F025
00000000000%02Y 025
00060000000002F025
0000000000008 T#0Z5
00000000000080b0ZC
000000000000507025

TEAVSTL

0000000000005 TEOZS
000000000000%TEOES
000000000000ETEDZS
000000000000E0E0ZS
000000000000205025
000000000000T0£025

SHOLAMES TYNOSHHEq
SLIAINAE FAXOTIHT

0000000000006020TS
00000000000080Z0TS
00000000000090Z0TS
0000000000002020TS
000000000000T020TS
SETUYIVS SEXOTINT

000000000000£0T0TS
00000000000020T0TS
000000000000T0TOTS

E0S9

£099

€059
£059
E059

£058
£059
E0g9
£059
€059
£059
£059
€059
£059
€059
£059
€059

£059
£059
£059
£059
£059
£059

£059
£059
£099
€059
£0499

£049
£059
£099

SOUYOH ONISNEDIT ® TVNOISSHEIONT

NOILarTuosag

ENNODDY

OANT - ZAWMAHIL HOYSSYH A0 guvosm
OINI - ZJuwdng, FOVSSYH J0 aquvwod

SONIUNE GOI¥NES ¥og

HILTVEH

28-S LOECH0~ENS /IOEr=E0 XTHINOW
VIOMYQ HINOS 10 HLYLS

reoe/e0/c0

€059
daWoD

ITZ260

goeg thite el ¢
OFBT200TTZ60
Logg SELDDW

OYBTS00TTIZ60
sogs S@L00W

OFBT900TTIZ60
078T900TTZ60
0VBT900TIZ60
Fogs Hirere )4

OFBTO0Q0TEZ60
078TI900TTZ60
0FBTS0O0TTZ60
0¥8TI200TTZ60
0¥BTS00TTZ60
OFBT200TTZ60
O0¥BT200TTZ60
0¥8I900TIZ60
OFBT900TTZ60
0¥BTS00TTZ60
OFBT900TTEE0
0FBT900TTZ60
{1 FAn LoDV

0F8I900TTZ60
O0VBT200TIZ60
0F8T900TTZ60
O0vBT200TTZ60
OVBIS00TIZ60
0¥BTI9001TZ60

TS 1)
€01s thnele)- 4

Ov8I9007TE60
0FBT900TIZ60
0v8T9001IZ60
O78T9001TZ60
CrBI900TTZ60
T0IS e o) 4

0¥8IS00TTES0
O0¥BT900ITEZ60
0r8T900TTE60

THYN ZNYIHOoD

ON ZNYEWOD
YEINID
S~UATNED

TT260 IINn Taoang

60

ADNEOY

TASTZ0wa



SeeT

Xyery
L
LY

*¥

oy

P8 LB 9F
¥8 L8R 9%

¥B L88‘9F

L 947815847

SEVA~OE-¥VEX

89°156
B9 TS6

89°156

S8 FSL

HINOH [ILNIDIND

LINO ILIADANE A€ I¥Od

reoc/e6ec/20

NOTIATHOSHd

OANT - ZIVIHHTL
QANI -~ ZIVSETHIL

ONTON® dOT¥Ed HOd
I LOUrgo-490s /LOI0rgo ATHLNOR

VEONYd HINOS JA0 HI

TTZ60

OF8I900TTIZ60

SHSNEJXA ONTILVIHIO
ENOODOY
FOUSSYH JO quvod

HOYSSYW 30 quuog

HITYHAH

SMIVOE ONISNEDIT ® TUNOISSHIONE £059

4}
JHOD
11260

SLINO g
SHEINED

*dWOD

IOV
LD
S-JILNID

TT260 JIING IEoang

60

¥Z0c/e0/c0

XONTOW

TASTZ0us



